
 

 

WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS 

LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIALS CONSORTIUM 

AGENDA 

Tuesday, October 14, 2014 

1:00 p.m. 

Bronze Conference Room 

6330 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 150 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 

Voice Stream Link: http://www.nvworkforceconnections.org/mis/listen.php 

 This agenda has been properly noticed and posted in the following locations:  

 City of Las Vegas, 495 S. Main St., Las Vegas, NV 

 City of North Las Vegas, 2250 N. Las Vegas Blvd.,  North Las Vegas, NV 

 Clark County Clerk’s Office, 500 S. Grand Central Pkwy., Las Vegas, NV  

 Esmeralda County Courthouse, 233 Crook Street, Goldfield, NV 

 Henderson City Hall, 240 Water St., Henderson, NV 

 Boulder City (City Hall) 401 California Ave., Boulder City, NV 

 Workforce Connections, 6330 W. Charleston Blvd., Ste. 150, Las Vegas, NV 

 Nevada JobConnect, 3405 S. Maryland Pkwy., Las Vegas, NV 

 Lincoln County Courthouse, 181 Main St., Pioche, NV    

 Nye County School District, 484 S. West St., Pahrump, NV 

 Pahrump Chamber of Commerce, 1302 S. Highway 160, Pahrump, NV 

This Agenda is also available at www.nvworkforceconnections.org 

COMMENTARY BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

This Board complies with Nevada’s Open Meeting Law, by taking Public Comment at the beginning of 

the meeting immediately after the Board approves the Agenda and before any other action is taken and 

again before the adjournment of the meeting.     

As required by Nevada’s Open Meeting Law, the Board may only consider items posted on the 

agenda.  Should you wish to speak on any agenda item or comment on any other matter during the Public 

Comment Session of the agenda; we respectfully request that you observe the following: 

1. Please state your name and home address for the record 

2. In fairness to others, groups or organizations are requested to designate one spokesperson 

3. In the interest of time, please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.  You are encouraged to 

give brief, non-repetitive statements to insure that all relevant information is presented. 

It is the intent of the Board to give all citizens an opportunity to be heard.   

Welcome to our meeting. 

 

Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. Request for such 

supporting materials should be made to Suzanne Potter at (702) 636-2300 or spotter@snvwc.org. Such supporting 

materials are available at the front desk of Workforce Connections, 6330 W. Charleston Blvd., Ste. 150, Las Vegas, 

NV, 89146, and are available online at www.nvworkforceconnections.org. 

Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities by notifying Dianne Tracy in 

writing at 6330 W. Charleston Blvd., Ste. 150, Las Vegas, NV 89146; or by calling (702) 638-8750; or by fax at 

(702) 638-8774.  The TTY/TDD access number is (800) 326-6868 / Nevada Relay 711.  A sign language interpreter 

may also be made available with twenty-four (24) hours advance notice. An Equal Opportunity Employer/Program. 

http://www.nvworkforceconnections.org/mis/listen.php
http://www.nvworkforceconnections.org/
mailto:spotter@snvwc.org
http://www.nvworkforceconnections.org/


 

 

NOTE: MATTERS IN THIS AGENDA MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF ORDER. 

Local Elected Officials Consortium Members: Chair Commissioner Lawrence Weekly (Clark 

County), Vice-Chair Councilwoman Anita Wood (City of North Las Vegas), Councilwoman Peggy 

Leavitt (Boulder City), Councilwoman Gerri Schroder (City of Henderson), Commissioner Butch 

Borasky (Nye County), Councilman Bob Beers (City of Las Vegas), Commissioner Ralph Keyes 

(Esmeralda County), Commissioner Adam Katschke (Lincoln County) 

All items listed on this Agenda are for action by the Local Elected Officials Consortium unless 

otherwise noted. Action may consist of any of the following:  approve, deny, condition, hold or table.  

Public Hearings may be declared open by the Chairperson, as required for any of the items on this 

Agenda designated for discussion or possible action or to provide direction and recommendations to 

Workforce Connections. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order, confirmation of posting, roll call, and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the agenda with inclusions of any 

emergency items and deletion of any items ....................................................................................... 2 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION:  Members of the public may now comment on any 

matter posted on this Agenda, which is before this Board for consideration and action today.  

Please clearly state and spell your name and state your address for the record.  Each public 

comment will be limited to three (3) minutes .................................................................................... 4 

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Local Elected Officials Consortium 

minutes of September 9, 2014 ............................................................................................................ 5 

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve New Board Member Applications ........... 12 

a. Cecilia Maldonado, Associate Professor/Workforce Development, UNLV 

Category: Education (2-year term - Effective January 1, 2015) ....................................... 13 

b. Jerrie Merritt, Senior Vice President, Bank of Nevada 

Category: Business (3-year term – Effective October 14, 2014) ...................................... 21 

6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Review, discuss, amend, and approve Executive 

Director’s Employment Contract and approve salary adjustment .................................................... 24 

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Pros and Cons – Converting Nevada JobConnect 

Offices to One-Stop Career Centers with Workforce Connections’ Oversight ~ DETR’s Deputy 

Director, Dennis Perea and Workforce Connections’ Executive Director, Ardell Galbreth ............ 35 

8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Receive DETR’s Deputy Director’s report 

regarding Workforce Connections’ contract with CST Project Consulting LLC and direct staff 

accordingly. ...................................................................................................................................... 37 

9. INFORMATION: Strategic Initiatives Update .............................................................................. 38 

10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Accept and approve Executive Director’s Report 

~ Ardell Galbreth ............................................................................................................................. 40 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

2 of 50



 

 

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION: Members of the public may now comment on 

any matter or topic, which is relevant to or within the authority or jurisdiction of the Board.  

You may comment now even if you commented earlier, however, please do not simply repeat 

the same comment you previously made. Please clearly state and spell your name and state 

your address for the record.  Each comment will be limited to three (3) minutes ........................... 49 

12. INFORMATION: LEO Consortium member comments and updates ........................................... 50 

13. ACTION: Accept a motion for adjournment 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

3 of 50



Agenda Item 3.  FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT:  

   Members of the public may now comment on any matter posted on  

   this Agenda, which is before this Board for consideration and action  

   today.  Please clearly state and spell your name and state your address 

   for the record.  Each public comment will be limited to three (3)  

   minutes 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

4 of 50



Agenda Item 4.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Approve Local Elected Officials Consortium minutes of   

   September 9,  2014 

  

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

5 of 50



WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS 

LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIALS CONSORTIUM 

MINUTES 

September 9, 2014 

1:00 p.m. 

Bronze Conference Room 
6330 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 150 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 
 

Members Present    Members Absent 

Commissioner Lawrence Weekly   None 
Commissioner Ralph Keyes (phone)    
Councilwoman Anita Wood     
Commissioner Butch Borasky (phone) 
Councilman Bob Beers 
Councilwoman Peggy Leavitt 
Commissioner Adam Katschke 
Councilwoman Gerri Schroder (phone) 

Staff Present      

Ardell Galbreth   Heather DeSart  Suzanne Potter 
Jim Kostecki   Ricardo Villalobos  Brett Miller  

Others Present 

Jack Eslinger, ESQ, City of Las Vegas  Liberty Leavitt, Clark County School District 
Dr. Tiffany Tyler, Nevada Partners, Inc.  Steve Gibson, DETR/WISS 
Nield Montgomery, The Learning Center  Linda Montgomery, The Learning Center 
Earl McDowell, DETR    Anthony Manor, District D 

1. CALL TO ORDER, confirmation of posting, roll call, Pledge of Allegiance 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Commissioner Lawrence Weekly at 1:13 p.m. Staff 
confirmed the meeting had been properly noticed and posted in accordance with the Nevada 
Open Meeting Law. Roll call was taken and a quorum was present. 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Agenda with inclusions of any 
emergency items and deletion of any items 

A motion was made to approve the agenda by Commissioner Adam Katschke and 
seconded by Councilwoman Peggy Leavitt. Motion carried. 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION:  

None 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

6 of 50



LEO Consortium Minutes, September 9, 2014 - Page 2 

 

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Local Elected Officials 
Consortium minutes of July 22, 2014 

A motion was made to approve the Local Elected Officials Consortium minutes of July 
22, 2014 by Commissioner Butch Borasky and seconded by Commissioner Adam 
Katschke. Motion carried. 

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve New Board Member Applications: 

a. Jack Martin, Director – Clark County Department of Juvenile Justice 
Services/Category: Other (2-year term) 

b. Liberty Leavitt, Graduation Initiative Coordinator – Clark County School 
District/Category: Education (2-year term) 

A motion was made to approve new Board member applications for  Jack Martin and 
Liberty Leavitt by Councilman Bob Beers and seconded by Councilwoman Peggy 
Leavitt. Motion carried. 

6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Review, Discuss, Accept, and Approve 
Reports 

Councilwoman Gerri Schroder disclosed her relationship with the Las Vegas Urban League. 

Chair Weekly requested that all items be taken in one vote. Jim Kostecki, Manager, Financial 
Services summarized the following reports: 

a. PY2013 WIA Formula Budget July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and Budget 
Narrative  

PY2013 WIA Formula Budget report is provided on page 27-34 of the agenda packet. 
Mr. Kostecki noted one change to the One-Stop System Budget (p. 34) to line item 7100 
Insurance – increased by $10,000 for insurance on buses donated by RTC. These funds 
will be reallocated from Strategic Initiative account. 

b. Budget vs. Actual Finance Report (Workforce Connections’ Operations) for the 
period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (Formula WIA) 

Budget vs. Actual report is provided on page 36 of the agenda packet. Mr. Kostecki 
reported that all line items are within budget parameters. 

c. Awards & Expenditures Report (Compliance and Operational Status of Service 
Providers/Funded Partners) – Monthly Update 

Mr. Kostecki presented the Adult & Dislocated Worker report (p. 38-39), Youth report 
(p. 40), and Direct Grants (p. 41) through June 2014 invoices. Only $140,000 of the 
$1,100,000 NEG funds allocated last program year was spent, so staff is meeting with 
DETR for new strategies and ways to expend the current year’s allocation of NEG 
funds. 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

7 of 50



LEO Consortium Minutes, September 9, 2014 - Page 3 

 

d. Funding Plans – Adult/Dislocated Worker/Youth – Monthly Update 

Brett Miller, Manager, Strategic Analysis summarized the Adult/Dislocated Worker 
Funding plan and highlighted the pending contracts on page 43 of the agenda packet. 
The ADW funding plan shows a remaining balance of $52,184 (.04 months). Heather 
DeSart, Deputy Executive Director reported that the Apprenticeship Preparation 
contract was executed by CSN and Workforce Connections, and the first cohort will 
begin the program this month. Discussion ensued regarding selecting the NSHE 
(Nevada System of Higher Education) entities for this and other programs. Mr. Galbreth 
stated that WC is seeking a new collaboration with higher education and has been in 
discussion with UNLV, CSN and Nevada State College regarding a partnership nursing 
program. Commissioner Weekly directed Ardell to send the LEOs an update regarding 
the pending contracts with NSHE and information on how WC staff (not the LEOs) is 
selecting these entities. Councilman Beers inquired about math pre-/post-test options 
for the Apprenticeship Preparation program, the duration of the program, and 
employment opportunities for individuals that complete the program. Ms. DeSart stated 
that the entire program is 12 weeks and individuals are not guaranteed an apprenticeship 
upon completing the program, however; it prepares them with the math skills they need 
to qualify for an apprenticeship.   

Brett Miller summarized the Youth Funding Plan and highlighted pending contracts on 
page 44 of the agenda packet. The Youth funding plan indicates a remaining balance of 
$725,166 (1.03 months). Councilwoman Leavitt inquired about the status of the 
Mesquite contract. Mr. Galbreth replied that funds have been set aside; however, a 
program scope has not been developed at this time. Chair Weekly inquired about 
Opportunity Village as a potential service provider for disabled youth services. Ricardo 
Villalobos, Director, Workforce Development Programs replied that Goodwill of 
Southern Nevada currently serves disabled youth and Opportunity Village, for whatever 
reason, did not respond to the RFP. Mr. Villalobos will reach out to Opportunity Village. 

Councilman Beers requested staff to add a column to the report identifying the current 
funded partners; staff concurred.  

e. Workforce Connections’ Professional Services Contracts – Monthly Update 

The Professional Services Contracts report is provided on page 46-51 of the agenda 
packet. 

A motion was made to accept and approve reports by Councilman Bob Beers and 
seconded by Commissioner Butch Borasky. Motion carried. 

7. INFORMATION: Veterans’ Employment and Training Reports ~ Brett Miller 

Brett Miller summarized the Veterans’ Training Snapshot (p. 53) and Employment Snapshot (p. 
54) for PY 2013 and highlighted the following: 

 152 Veterans completed training 

 $416,585 spent on training 

 $2,741 average cost of training 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

8 of 50



LEO Consortium Minutes, September 9, 2014 - Page 4 

 

Chair Weekly encouraged the LEOs to get more involved in Veterans’ services and contact staff 
regarding upcoming Veterans’ meetings and events in the community. Ms. DeSart stated that 
staff will be happy to attend and represent WC at any event they request. Discussion ensued. 
Commissioner Borasky reported that Nye Communities Coalition and the local VFW is holding 
their Annual Veterans’ Stand Down event on October 16th from 9 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. at the 
Home Depot along north highway 160 to benefit the veterans population.  

8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Proposed changes to Statewide WIA 
Distribution Formula 

Ardell Galbreth presented the proposed changes (highlighted in red) to the Statewide WIA 
Distribution Formula provided on page 58-63 of the agenda packet. Mr. Galbreth stated that 
the proposed methodology changes will even out the allocation between the northern and 
southern workforce investment boards. The changes will go to the Governor’s Workforce 
Investment Board for approval/disapproval at their meeting on October 16, 2014. Chair Weekly 
asked whether or not DETR is on board with the changes that Workforce Connections is 
proposing, and requested DETR representative Earl McDowell to comment. Mr. McDowell 
stated that this is the first time he has seen the proposed changes and he would be remiss to and 
answer on behalf of DETR at this time. Councilman Beers noted that Board members (and 
public) can go to DETR’s website and post their comments.  

A motion was made to accept the proposed changes to the Statewide WIA Distribution 
Formula by Councilman Bob Beers and seconded by Councilwoman Anita Woods. 
Motion carried. 

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Executive Director’s Performance 
Evaluation 

Ardell Galbreth reported that the LEOs received a copy of the Executive Director’s 
Performance Report outlining at their meeting in July and were asked to review the report and 
come back today with comments and/or further direction regarding his performance. Mr. 
Galbreth stated that he has a passion to serve the community and would like to opportunity to 
continue to do so with the support from the LEOs. The LEOs commented and unanimously 
agreed that Mr. Galbreth was doing a great job with his leadership and successfully moving the 
agency forward. Councilman Beers stated that he would like to see WC enter into MOUs with 
DETR to make the current Nevada JobConnect offices into One-Stop Career Centers. 
Commissioner Weekly directed staff to agendize a presentation regarding the pros and cons of 
establishing the JobConnects into One-Stop Centers and invite DETR’s interim director Dennis 
Perea to speak. Councilwoman Wood and Commissioner Weekly agreed that WC needs to 
improve relations with DETR and build collaboration in order to serve more individuals that 
still need help finding employment. Weekly further stated that he appreciates meeting with the 
Board Chair and Ms. DeSart to review the agendas before the meetings and to discuss other 
things going on. 

Commissioner Weekly requested guidance from legal counsel regarding the executive director’s 
contract and possible salary adjustment. Jack Eslinger stated that no action can be taken until it 
is properly agendized. Commissioner directed staff to agendize it for the next meeting and 
Councilman Beers requested staff to provide the LEOs with a copy of the current contract at 
least one week prior to the meeting. 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

9 of 50



LEO Consortium Minutes, September 9, 2014 - Page 5 

 

10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Executive Director’s Update ~ Ardell 
Galbreth 

a. Executive Director’s Report 

Ardell Galbreth presented the Executive Director’s Report on page 66 of the agenda packet 
and highlighted the following: 

 WC is seeking additional grants and has been working with DOL’s regional office in 
San Francisco regarding the consumer financial support grant for veterans. 

 Staff attended California Workforce Association conference last week. 

 Staff and board received good feedback and comments from the US Department of 
Labor regional office in San Francisco and Washington DC regarding the One-Stop 
Career Center and One-Stop Delivery System in southern Nevada. 

 Moving forward with WC and Nellis AFB partnership. Met with Airman’s Readiness 
Unit last Friday to discuss employment and training support needs and opportunities 
for Nellis AFB as they downsize.  

 Workforce Development Academy successfully launched last week and great 
feedback received regarding instructors. 

b. Annual Report – Program Year 2013/14 

Mr. Galbreth reported that the Annual Report for Program Year 2013–2014 (distributed at 
the previous Board meeting) was submitted to DETR.  

c. Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Update 

Mr. Galbreth directed the LEO’s attention to the backup provided in the agenda packet 
including a summary of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (p. 68), key 
improvements from current law (p. 70), analysis of the potential impact on one-stop career 
centers (p. 72), side-by-side comparison of WIOA and WIA services required (p. 73), service 
eligibility (p. 80), and performance required (p. 84); WIOA careers, career pathways, barriers 
to employment (p. 87); employer engagement and business services (p. 89), and WIOA key 
implementation dates for programs (p. 91). 

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION:  

Dr. Tiffany Tyler, Nevada Partners, Inc. commented that NPI annually attends the Veterans’ 
Stand Down event to support veterans. 

12. INFORMATION: LEO Consortium Member Comments 

Councilwoman Schroder reported that she recently visited Vietnam and China on behalf of the 
City of Henderson to support the Union Village Project, which breaks ground for its new 
hospital next month. The project will create many temporary construction jobs as well as 
permanent hospital jobs. 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

10 of 50



LEO Consortium Minutes, September 9, 2014 - Page 6 

 

Commissioner Borasky reported that Big 5 will be having its grand opening this week, China 
Wok is working on a few planning issues prior to its grand opening, and Nye County is 
celebrating its Fall Festival the weekend of September 26 – 28th. 

Commissioner Katschke reported that summer youth programs are winding down in Lincoln 
County. 

Councilwoman Leavitt reported that Boulder City is in the preliminary stages of developing a 
new youth employment and training program, planning for the construction of I-11, and will be 
holding Art in the Park the first weekend in October for approximately 100,000 attendees. 

Councilman Beers inquired about English acquisition programs. Ms. DeSart reported that in the 
past there has been some ESL and workplace English training. 

Councilwoman Woods reported the City of North Las Vegas is planning its next master 
planned community to be called Tully Springs, and there are many upcoming community events 
scheduled at Craig Ranch Park. 

Commissioner Weekly reported that 130,000 children went without food in Clark County last 
year and organizations, agencies are encouraged to hold food drives and donate to Three 
Square. Weekly further reported that Peggy’s Attic at Child Haven, which was started by 
Councilwoman Leavitt, is accepting donations for new and gently used baby items. 

13. ACTION: Adjournment 

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 2:26 p.m. by Councilman Bob Beers and 
seconded by Councilwoman Peggy Leavitt. Motion carried. 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

11 of 50



Agenda Item 5.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Approve new Board Member Applications 

  

a. Cecilia Maldonado, Associate Professor/Workforce Development 

University Nevada Las Vegas (UNLV) 

Category: Education (2-year term – Effective January 1, 2015) 

 

b. Jerrie Merritt, Sr. Vice President 

Bank of Nevada 

Category: Business (3-year term – Effective October 14, 2014) 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

12 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

13 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

14 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

15 of 50



CECILIA MALDONADO-DANIELS 
 (702) 895-3410 

ceciliam@unlv.nevada.edu 
drcecilia8@yahoo.com 

 
EDUCATION 

2000, August  Ph.D. Workforce Education and Development 
   Emphasis: Training and Human Resource Development 

Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA  
Dissertation Title: 
An Investigation of Hispanic Students’ Participation in 
Postsecondary Technical Education in the United States 

1997, May  M.S. Technical Education 
Emphasis: Computer Technology 

   University of Akron, Akron, OH  
1995, May  B.S.  Elementary Education 
   University of Akron, Akron, OH  
1991, January B.S. Industrial Management 
   Emphasis: Management Information Systems 
   University of Akron, Akron, OH 

 
SKILLS/CERTIFICATIONS 

Fluent in Spanish (speaking, reading and writing) 
Certified Facilitator, Development Dimensions International Learning Systems (DDI) 
Certified Facilitator, Langevin Learning, Inc. 
Certified DACUM (Developing A CUrriculuM) Facilitator, The Ohio State University 
 

RESEARCH INTERESTS 
Hispanic Participation in Post-secondary Technical Education (Dissertation Topic) 
Hispanic Education and Workplace Issues 
Latina Women and Leadership 
Technology Training 
Generations in the Workplace 
 

AWARDS and HONORS 
 
2011-2012 Graduate & Professional Student Association [GPSA] Outstanding 

Mentor  
2011-2012  UNLV Foundation Distinguished Teaching Award 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2014 [January] – Present 
Provost Fellow, Mentoring and Faculty Development 
Associate Professor, Workforce Development 
 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2011 [April] – 2012 [June]  
Immediate Past Chair, Faculty Senate 
Associate Professor, Workforce Development (Moved to College of Urban Affairs) 
Program Coordinator, Ph.D. Workforce Development & Organizational Leadership 
 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

16 of 50

mailto:drcecilia8@yahoo.com


 
Immediate Past Chair Duties: 

• Ex-Officio, non-voting member of the UNLV Faculty Senate; 
• Member of the Executive Committee; 
• Attends monthly Faculty Senate meetings; 
• Chairs University Promotion & Tenure Committee 
• Faculty Senate Representative, University Policy Committee 
• Faculty Senate Representative, President’s Advisory Committee 
• Meets monthly with the Executive Committee to plan Faculty Senate 

meetings and discuss relevant issues; 
• With the Executive Committee, meet monthly with President and Executive 

President and Provost; 
• Participates in Fall and Spring Commencement ceremonies; 

 
 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2010 [April] – 2011 [April]  
Chair, Faculty Senate 
Associate Professor, Workforce Education and Development 
Program Coordinator, Workforce Education and Development 
 
Faculty Senate Chair Duties: 

• Ex-Officio, non-voting member of the UNLV Faculty Senate; 
• Chair of the Executive Committee; 
• Presides at monthly Faculty Senate meetings; 
• Meets monthly with the Executive Committee to plan Faculty Senate 

meetings and discuss relevant issues; 
• With the Executive Committee, meet monthly with President and Executive 

President and Provost; 
• Ex-Officio member of the Academic Council and Cabinet; attends monthly 

meetings; 
• Member, Council of Chairs [All Faculty Senate Chairs within the Nevada 

System of Higher Education]; 
• With the Council of Chairs, meets monthly with Chancellor of the Nevada 

System of Higher Education; 
• Participates at all Board of Regents’ meetings [6 meetings per year] 
• Coordinates Grievance processes; advices parties of their rights under these 

processes; randomly selects committee members and selects chairs of each 
grievance committee; 

• Interprets UNLV Bylaws; 
• Selects, in consultation with the Executive Committee, chairs for 16 Faculty 

Senate Committees; 
• Meets with Committee Chairs and Council of Senior Senators; 
• Coordinated Evaluation of the President 
• Participates in Fall and Spring Commencement ceremonies; 
• Manages Faculty Senate office and staff  
• Represents faculty and participates at various university events such as New 

Faculty Orientation, the President State of the University address, awards 
ceremonies and University Town Halls 

 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2009 [April]- 2010 [April]  
Vice Chair, Faculty Senate 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

17 of 50



Associate Professor, Workforce Education and Development 
Program Coordinator, Workforce Education and Development 
 
Faculty Senate Vice Chair Duties: 

• Ex-Officio, non-voting member of the UNLV Faculty Senate; 
• Member of the Executive Committee; participates in the planning of monthly 

Faculty Senate meetings and discuss relevant issues; 
• Attends monthly Faculty Senate meetings; 
• As member of the Executive Committee, meet monthly with President and 

Executive President and Provost; 
• Ex-Officio member, University Promotion and Tenure Committee 
• Other duties as assigned by Chair, Faculty Senate: 

o Co-Chair, Joint Evaluation Team (2009-2010).  
JET is an ad hoc committee responsible for reviewing college, school and 
vice presidential division input for reductions, modifications or 
eliminations of programs on our campus in response to budget crisis. 
• Chair, Ad Hoc Sub-Committee on Fostering a Culture of Civility. 

(2009-2010).  
 Subcommittee of the Faculty Senate Academics and Freedom Committee 

- charged to investigate how other universities have defined and then 
acted to encourage tolerance, civility, understanding of differences and 
appreciation for the value of diversity in the teaching and research 
activities of a university like UNLV. 
• Faculty Senate Liaison, Hate Crimes Policy Task Force. (2009). 
Invited to serve by University President on this 4-person task force to 
review the proposed Hate Crimes and Bias Incidents Policy and provide 
the President suggestions for revisions. A revised policy was given to the 
President, who accepted it and presented it to the Board of Regents for 
approval in June, 2009. 

 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2007- Present  
Associate Professor, Workforce Education and Development 
Tenured July 1, 2007 
Program Coordinator, Workforce Education and Development 
Professor Duties: 

• Teach undergraduate and graduate courses in the program; 
• Mentor advisees and graduate assistants;  
• Advise students; 
• Chair student committees (Master’s and Ph.D.) 
• Review and update courses within the program; 
• Research and publish; 
• Participate and contribute as a member of department, college and 

university committees; 
Program Coordinator Duties: 

• Correspond with current and prospective students enrolled and interested in 
the program; 

• Advise graduate students in the program; 
• Complete programs of study and other pertinent forms for graduate 

students; 
• Coordinate class schedules with faculty and obtain necessary part-time 

instructors to teach courses not covered; 
• Assist part-time instructors with course content and onboarding; 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

18 of 50



• Review, evaluate and coordinate curriculum changes for undergraduate and 
graduate programs; 

• Write reports (assessment, program review. etc.); 
• Chair program meetings; 
• Attend and participate in Department Leadership Team 
• Graduate Coordinator and Member of the Graduate Council  
• Evaluate undergraduate portfolios to determine valid work experience for 

credit; 
• Advise all undergraduate students before they enroll in student teaching 

course; 
• Evaluate and approve new student admission requests; 
• Evaluate and approve petitions submitted by students; 
• Communicate and collaborate with college personnel about program and 

student issues. 
 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2000 - 2007 
Assistant Professor, Workforce Education & Development 
Training & Development Emphasis Coordinator 
(2000-2006) 
Program Coordinator, Workforce Education and Development 
(2006-present) 
Professor Duties: 

• Develop all courses for the emphasis in Training and Development 
• Teach courses in undergraduate and master’s program in HRD 
• Chair student committees (Master's and Ph.D.) 
• Participate in university, college and department committees 
• Research and publish 
• Faculty Senator (2006 to present) 

Training Emphasis Coordinator Duties: 
• Recruit and advise current and new students 
• Complete and submit program of study forms 
• Review and update courses in emphasis 
• Hire adjuncts and assist with onboarding. 

Program Coordinator Duties: 
• See above 

 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, NV 
2000 - 2005 
Training Specialist, The Center for Workforce Development & Research 
Duties: 

• Coordinate and advise training projects through the Center 
• Assist in Center projects: Design, develop and facilitate workshops 
• Assign and mentor master’s students in the Workforce Training and 

Development program who assist in Center projects 
 
Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA  
1998 - 2000 
Instructor of Education, Center for Professional Personnel Development 
Duties: 

 Teach course on Vocational Student Organizations to current teachers 
finishing certification as well as graduate and undergraduate students 

 Conduct Needs Assessments 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

19 of 50



 Design and deliver professional development training as well as provide 
services to Vocational Educators in the Central Region of Pennsylvania as 
needed  

 Assist in other Center-related projects 
 Co-Advisor for Penn State’s Collegiate Skills USA- VICA – Beta Chapter 

 
Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA 
1999 - 2000 
Program Coordinator for Pennsylvania Vocational Educators Conference (PVEC) 
Duties: 

 Recruit, market and coordinate statewide conference for Vocational Teachers 
in the state of Pennsylvania 

 
Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA  
1998 - 2000 
Trainer (part-time), Center for Academic Computing 
Duties: 

 Train university staff and/or students on various software applications 
 Provide other instruction which includes Advanced Eudora (Email) and 

PowerPoint 
 
Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA  
1997 - 1998 
Graduate Assistant and Ph.D. Candidate, Workforce Education and Development 
Duties: 

 Designed posters using PageMaker 
 Designed and developed web pages 
 Compiled course packets for professors 
• Developed multimedia presentations 

 
REFEREED PUBLICATIONS 

Davis, D. & Maldonado, C. (2013). Breaking the Glass Ceiling (or Concrete Barriers): 
The Leadership Development of African American Women in Higher Education. 
Submitted to Frontiers: A Journal of Women Studies. 

Saddler, S., Tyler, T. G., Maldonado, C., Cleveland, R., & Thompson, L. K. (2011, 
Summer). Connecting dropouts to career pathways. Reclaiming Children & 
Youth, 20(2), 37-39. 

Gordon, H. R. D., McClain, C., Kim, Y. & Maldonado, C. (2010). Meta-analysis as a 
choice to improve research in Career and Technical Education. Career and 
Technical Education Research, 35(2), 103-116. 

Martinez, M., Maldonado, C., & Lester, D. (2009). Measuring the effects of 
interpersonal training for the workforce. Online Journal for Workforce Education 
and Development, 3(4). Available: http://opensiuc.lib.siu.edu/ojwed/vol3/iss4/ 

Gordon, H. R. D., Yocke, R. J., Maldonado-Daniels, C., & Saddler, S. J. (2007). 
Selected career and technical education teachers’ perceptions of the No Child 
Left Behind Act (Public Law 107-110): An exploratory study.  Journal of Career 
and Technical Education, 23(1), 121-132. 

Maldonado, C. & Farmer, E. I. (2007).  Examining Latinos involvement in the workforce 
and postsecondary technical education in the United States.  Journal of Career 
and Technical Education, 22(2). 26-40. 

 Available at http://scholar.lib.vt.edu/ejournals/JCTE/v22n2/pdf/v22n2.pdf 
*Awarded the 2007 Journal of Career and Technical Education Outstanding Paper 

of the Year  

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

20 of 50

http://opensiuc.lib.siu.edu/ojwed/vol3/iss4/
http://scholar.lib.vt.edu/ejournals/JCTE/v22n2/pdf/v22n2.pdf
spotter
Text Box



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

21 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

22 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

23 of 50



Agenda Item 6.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Review, discuss, amend, and approve Executive Director’s   

   Employment Contract and approve salary adjustment 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

24 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

25 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

26 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

27 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

28 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

29 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

30 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

31 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

32 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

33 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

34 of 50



Agenda Item 7.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Pros and Cons – Converting Nevada JobConnect Offices to One-Stop 

   Career Centers with Workforce Connections’ Oversight ~ DETR’s  

   Deputy Director, Dennis Perea and Workforce Connections’   

   Executive Director, Ardell Galbreth 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

35 of 50



PROS CONS

Will ensure compliance with Section 121 (access to all of the 

required programs and activities: WIA/WIOA; Wagner-Peyser; Adult 

Literacy & Vocational Education; Vocational Rehabilitation; Welfare-

to-Work; Senior Community Service Employment Program - SCSEP; 

Trade; Veterans Employment and Training; the Community Services 

Block Grant; and HUD Employment and Training Programs), whether 

in person or via electronic connection. Addresses Finding #12 of the 

2011 DOL On-Site Monitoring Review Report.

Increased workload for Workforce Connections. Need for 

infrastructure preparedness.

Will centralize oversight local workforce investment area. Will unify 

the plan, process, policies & procedures. Minimizes confusion in the 

community. Will extend the One-Stop Career Center and American 

Job Center brands to the Job Connect offices.

Potential morale degradation issues with staff.

Executed MOUs between Workforce Connections and DETR will 

make the JobConnect locations One-Stop Career Centers. This 

addresses finding #28 of the 2011 DOL On-Site Monitoring Review 

Report and will bring the JobConnect locations out of non-

compliance.

Potential increased beaucracy by having WISS monitor WC, and WC 

monitor JobConnect. 

Will ensure US DOL compliance by making sure that the LWIB and 

the One-Stop partners in the JobConnect offices are operating under 

a Memorandum of Understanding.  This addresses finding #29 of the 

2011 DOL On-Site Monitoring Review Report.

May result in slower decision making processes since the contract 

process, budgeting process, and GWIB policy process for DETR could 

take 2 to 4 months based on monthly, bimonthly and quarterly 

meeting schedules.

Will expand Wagner-Peyser services to rural counties through 

required MOUs. No Wagner Peyser services are currently provided 

in Esmeralda, Lincoln, or Nye counties. Will effectively combine 

delivery of services to those clients hardest to serve including Re-

Entry, Adults with Disabilities, etc.

May require additional funding to stand up affiliate locations in rural 

counties that do not exist at this time. Existing Wagner-Peyser 

funding will need to be spread across rural locations.

Will increase efficiency and effectiveness of the One-Stop Delivery 

System. Section 121 states that the One-Stop Delivery System is to 

unify the numerous employment and training programs into a single, 

customer-friendly set of services.

 In addition, the statewide distribution of Wagner-Peyser funding 

will need to be reviewed by DETR to ensure equitable distribution 

across the state.

 Will improve sharing of information between state and local 

partners (e.g. Unemployment Insurance data).

Will improve quality of Business Engagement Services provided to 

employers.  Employers will receive similar employer services from 

their chosen location(s) and it should reduce the confusion created 

by separate or multiple contacts from JobConnect offices and the 

Workforce Connections One-Stop Career Center.

Increased need for Business Engagement Services training.

Improve leveraging of multiple funding sources. All programs and 

activities must contribute funds to the operation of the One-Stop 

Delivery System.

Will result in a reduced amount of WIA funding for service provider 

home office locations.

Will appropriately distribute WIA/WIOA, Wagner-Peyser and other 

funding across four One-Stop Career Center locations in the valley.

Significant need for invesment in facilities & technology upgrades in 

existing JobConnect locations.

Will support the successful rollout of the new Statewide Automated 

Workforce System (SAWS) across the local workforce investment 

area.

Reduced WIA/WIOA funding for Serice Provider Home Offices.

The PROS and CONS of converting the JobConnect offices

to comprehensive One-Stop Career Centers under the oversight of Workforce Connections

SYSTEM OVERSIGHT 

and operated by DETR under an executed MOU with Workforce Connections

SERVICE DELIVERY

ONE-STOP OPERATORS / CONSORTIUMS

FUNDING

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

36 of 50



Agenda Item 8.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Receive DETR’s Deputy Director’s report regarding Workforce  

   Connections’ contract with CST Project Consulting LLC and direct  

   staff accordingly. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

37 of 50



Agenda Item 9.  INFORMATION:  

   Strategic Initiatives Update 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

38 of 50



Strategic Initiatives Update 09-23-14 

 

I. Behind the scenes  

 Continual improvement of Workforce Connections’ One-Stop Delivery System (OSDS) 

 Formulation and execution of strategies that support the agency’s goals  

 Alignment of organizational, program and budget priorities  

 Collection, analysis and reporting of relevant data 

 Quality assurance processes 

 Innovation 

 

II. Current on-going initiatives 

 Preparation for the  implementation of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)  

 Pursuing flexible funding sources to augment existing WIA funded programs.  

o AARP Foundation’s BACK TO WORK 50+ Program  

o US DOL’s Transitioning Veterans Financial Coaching Program 

o US DOL American Apprenticeship Grants 

 Comprehensive review and update of Policies and Procedures that will support on-going 

compliance and the most effective service delivery to participants 

 Collaboration with DETR to complete a thorough US DOL data validation process between 

Management Information Systems (NV Trac and OSOS) and the implementation of a Statewide 

Automated Workforce System (SAWS) 

 Collaboration with DETR to implement performance data reporting for the Eligible Training 

Provider List (ETPL) 

 Streamlining the ETPL application and management process with the implementation of online 

tools  

 Implementing Science Technology Engineering & Math (STEM) career exploration workshops in 

the One-Stop Career Center (OSCC) that expose participants to skill sets and competencies 

required in Nevada’s targeted industry sectors 

 Local Employer Advisory Panel (LEAP) meets quarterly and provides local area intelligence for 

the OSDS  

 

III. Workforce Connections’ Strategic Plan has four major goals: 

1. Implement Effective Management and Oversight 

2. Champion Youth Education, Training and Employment 

3. Establish a One-Stop Delivery System and a Comprehensive One-Stop Career Center  

4. Attract, Grow and Retain Business 

(Goals 1 and 3 in the Strategic Plan need to be updated and will be addressed at the next ADW and 

Budget & Finance Committee meetings).   

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

39 of 50



Agenda Item 10.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  

   Accept and approve Executive Director’s Report 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

40 of 50



1 
 

Executive Director’s Report 

October 14, 2014  

 

Rural Counties Update 
 Nye County 

 Reviewing the possibilities of setting up STEM equipment for training initiatives 

 Reviewing the possibilities of establishing a Comprehensive Rural One-Stop Career 

Center—most of the components are already in place with a no cost facility 

 Lincoln County 

 Continued traction in all workforce delivery areas with businesses/employers engagement 

 

NEW PROGRAMS AND SERVICES INITIATIVES 
 Receive Notification to Participate in Veterans’ Transition Coaching Program in 

Partnership with the Armed Force Services Corporation Sponsored by the U.S. 

Department of Labor 

 Working a Partnership with Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE) with Grant 

Receipt to Support the Future of Nurses Program Effective November 1, 2014 

 Staff Attended U.S. Department of Labor Town Hall Meeting with Focus on 

Implementing the New Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)—four Staff 

Members Attended 

 

Staff Development and Service Providers Training 
 Detailed Confidentiality and Privacy Act Training Conducted for all Staff on October 24, 

2014 

 

Workforce Development Challenges 
 Working with and providing technical assistance to the Latin Chamber of Commerce 

Community Foundation to help improve the agency’s financial compliance posture 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

41 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

42 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

43 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

44 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

45 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

46 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

47 of 50



LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

48 of 50



Agenda Item 11.  SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT:  

   Members of the public may now comment on any matter or topic,  

   which is relevant to or within the authority or jurisdiction of the  

   Board.  You may comment now even if you commented earlier,  

   however, please do not simply repeat the same comment you   

   previously made. Please clearly state and spell your name and state  

   your address for the record.  Each comment will be limited to three (3) 

   minutes 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

49 of 50



Agenda Item 12.  INFORMATION:  

   LEO Consortium member comments and updates 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LEO Consortium Agenda, October 14, 2014

50 of 50


	01 LEO Agenda 10.14.14
	03 public comment
	04 1
	04 LEO Minutes 09.09.14 DRAFT
	05 1
	05 a Cecilia Maldonado
	Workforce Board Application Maldonado Scanned
	CeciliasVita - NA (9-14)
	Emphasis: Computer Technology
	RESEARCH INTERESTS
	PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
	Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	REFEREED PUBLICATIONS
	BOOKS
	BOOK CHAPTERS
	NON-REFEREED PUBLICATIONS
	REPORTS
	PRESENTATIONS AT PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS: REFEREED
	PRESENTATIONS AT PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS: INVITED
	Team Member. (1999). Community Needs Assessment Presentation, Pennsylvania
	State University, Dubois, PA and University of Pittsburgh, Bradford, PA
	Invited Trainer. (1999). Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Panel Member. (1998). Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Technology Trainer. (1997). University of Akron, Akron, OH

	SIGNIFICANT LEADERSHIP ROLES:
	UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE, PROFESSIONAL & LEARNED SOCIETIES, DEPARTMENT AND COMMUNITY
	SERVICE TO PROFESSIONAL & LEARNED SOCIETIES, UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE, DEPARTMENT AND COMMUNITY
	Conference Coordinator, Best Practices Mini Conference. (2002). University of Nevada, Las Vegas, NV
	Student Leadership Committee Member. (1998). Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Search Committee Member, The Center for Workforce Development and Occupational Research (2002).
	Coordinator, Benchmarking Project. (2002).
	Chair, Colloquium Design Committee. (1998). Workforce Education and Development, Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Course Structure Designer. (1998). Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Graduate Student Member, Faculty Search Committee. (1997). University of Akron, Akron, OH

	Host, GEAR-UP: Summer Academy. (2002).
	18- 24 Year Old State Initiative Kickoff. (2002).
	TRAINING AND CONSULTING
	Tech Prep Consortium Training, Truckee Meadow Community College. (2004, June). Reno, NV
	State Department of Education, Occupational Skill Standards Development. (2004, January). Reno, NV
	Facilitator, Workplace Basic Skills Training [CCSD]. (2003, May & September).
	Provided training on using employability curriculum to vocational teachers.
	Facilitator, Aristocrat Technologies Displaced Worker Training. (2003, February).
	Provided training on computer job searches for displaced workers.
	State Department of Education: Occupational Skill Standards Development. (January, 2003). Reno, NV
	Planned, developed a two- day training for teachers on writing standards, phase III.
	Facilitator, Nevada Association for Career and Technical Education (NVACTE). (2002, July). Minden, NV
	Best Practices Mini Conference. (2002, May). Las Vegas, NV
	Desert AutoNation. (2002, March).  Las Vegas, NV
	Gear Up: Tutor Training. (2002).  Las Vegas, NV
	State Department of Education: Occupational Skill Standards Development. (2002, January). Reno, NV
	Organizer and Facilitator, Nevada Partners. (2001). Las Vegas, NV
	Facilitator, Desert AutoNation. (2001). Las Vegas, NV
	State Department of Education: Occupational Skill Standards Development. (2001, January). Reno, NV
	Organizer and Facilitator, University of Nevada, Las Vegas. (2000).
	Facilitator, University of Nevada, Las Vegas. (2000).
	Facilitator, University of Nevada, Reno. (2000).
	Co-Facilitator, Strategic Planning Workshop. (2000). Pennsylvania State University, University Park, PA
	Designer and Co-Facilitator, National VICA Consultant Training. (1999).  Herndon, VA
	WORKSHOPS AND CONFERENCES ATTENDED
	1998  Illustrator 8.0 Workshop
	1998  PhotoShop 5.0 Workshop
	CURRENT AND/OR ONGOING RESEARCH PROJECTS
	Approved Protocol #1301-4354. (2013, February). A Qualitative Study of Past Student Participants’ Perceptions of College Mentoring Relationships: A Case within a Hospitality College in a Higher Education Institution. With Student Investigator, Roberta...
	Approved Protocol #1111-3972. (2012, February). The Development of Leaders: A Phenomenological Study on the Leadership Development of African American women.
	With Student Investigator, Deanna Davis (Completed 12/12)
	DISSERTATIONS AND THESES DIRECTED
	COURSES TAUGHT
	PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
	HONORS AND AWARDS
	OTHER EXPERIENCE
	APPENDIX A: RELATIVE RANKING OF SELECTED REFEREED JOURNALS



	05 b Jerrie Merritt
	06 1
	06 ED Salary
	06 ExD Contract
	07 1
	07 Pros and Cons presentation
	08 1
	09 1
	09 Strategic Initiatives Update 9-23-14
	10 1
	10 ED Report 1
	10 ED Report 2 WC Policy
	11 public comment
	12 LEO comments



